

Rutland County Council

Catmose Oakham Rutland LE15 6HP Telephone 01572 722577 Email: goverance@rutland.gov.uk

Minutes of the SPECIAL MEETING of the RUTLAND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Tuesday, 13th December, 2022 at 2.00 pm

PRESENT

| 1. | Samantha Harvey | Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Adult |
|-----|----------------------------|--|
| | (Councillor) CHAIR | Care |
| 2. | David Wilby (Councillor) | Portfolio Holder for Education and Children's |
| | | Services |
| 3. | David Williams | Director of Strategy and Business Development, |
| | [representing Mark Powell] | Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust |
| 4. | Dawn Godfrey | Strategic Director of Children and Families |
| | | (DCS), RCC |
| 5. | Debra Mitchell | Deputy Chief Operating Officer, LLR ICB |
| 6. | Duncan Furey | Chief Executive Officer, Citizens Advice Rutland |
| 7. | Ian Crowe | Armed Forces Representative |
| 8. | Janet Underwood (Dr) | Chair, Healthwatch Rutland |
| 9. | John Morley | Strategic Director for Adults and Health (DASS), |
| | | RCC |
| 10. | Mike Sandys | Director of Public Health for Leicestershire & |
| | | Rutland, LCC |
| 11. | Sarah Prema | Chief Strategy Officer, LLR Integrated Care |
| | | Service |

APOLOGIES:

| 12. | James Burden (Dr) | Clinical Place Leader, Rutland Health Primary |
|-----|----------------------------|---|
| | VICE CHAIR | Care Network |
| 13. | Louise Platt | Executive Director of Care and Business |
| | | Partnerships, Longhurst Group |
| 14. | Mark Powell | Deputy Chief Executive, Leicestershire |
| | | Partnership NHS Trust |
| 15. | Paul Kear (Sgt) | Leicestershire Police |
| | [representing Insp. Booth] | |
| 16. | Penny Sharp | Strategic Director of Places |
| 17. | Simon Barton | Deputy Chief Executive, UHL NHS Trust |

ABSENT:

| 18. | Lindsey Booth (Insp) | NPA Commander Melton & Rutland, |
|-----|----------------------|---|
| | | Leicestershire Police |
| 19. | Steve Corton | Ageing Well Team Support, NHS England - Midlands |

OFFICERS PRESENT:

| 20. | Adrian Allen | Head of Service Design & Delivery, Public Health |
|-----|--------------------|--|
| 21. | Jane Narey | Scrutiny Officer, RCC |
| 22. | Katherine Willison | Health and Wellbeing Integration Lead, RCC |
| 23. | Mat Wise | Service Manager - Hospital Team |

1 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES RECEIVED

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies were received from Simon Barton, Louise Platt, James Burden, Mark Powell, Penny Sharp, Sgt Paul Kear

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

3 PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

There were no petitions, deputations or questions

4 HEALTH AND WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP - DRAFT INTEGRATED CARE STRATEGY

The initial draft of the Integrated Care Strategy from the Health and Wellbeing Partnership was presented by Sarah Prema, Chief Strategy Officer, Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Integrated Care Service.

The document was for comment by the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board before it went out for consultation following its official approval by the Health and Wellbeing Partnership at its meeting on the 15th December 2022. During the discussion, the following points were noted:

 The Health and Wellbeing Partnership was a partnership board between the NHS and its partners including local authorities and was established in July 2022 as part of the changes to the NHS.

> ---oOo---Dawn Godfrey joined the meeting at 2.05 p.m. ---oOo---

- The strategies for each health and wellbeing board (Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland) were the basis for the draft Integrated Care Strategy.
- The Integrated Care Strategy would be based on things that could be done at a system level whilst the individual health and wellbeing strategies were based on things that could be done at a place level.
- Workshops were held by the Health and Wellbeing Partnership in June and October 2022 and 6 priorities were identified.
- Priorities 1 to 4 would be focused on over the next 5 years whilst Priorities 5 and 6 would be focused on over the next 2 years.

Priority 1: Reducing Health Inequalities

Priority 2: Preventing illness and helping people to stay well

- Priority 3: Championing integration
- Priority 4: Fulfilling our role as 'Anchor' organisations
- Priority 5: Co-ordinated action on the Cost-of-Living crisis
- Priority 6: Making it easier for people to access the services they need
- The Integrated Care Strategy would be published by the 31st December 2022 and consultation events would be held in early 2023. It was still in a very draft format and was very much a work in progress.
- It was noted that it was good to see inclusion of the armed forces within the strategy but it was requested that the phrase 'serving military' was changed to 'serving armed forces personnel' and the phrase 'military' was changed to 'armed forces community.'
- Members commented that there was not enough explicit recognition about the limitations of rural public transportation and the difficulties this created plus there was no information or comment about data sharing with patients. Members were informed that Peterborough City Hospital allowed patients to have some electronic control over their appointments so ensuring that different appointments were not on consecutive days. This system was not currently available at Leicester hospitals.
- The Integrated Care Strategy needed to show that it was linked to the 5-year forward plan of the Integrated Care Board and how it linked with the actions for the identified priorities
- Members agreed that the language within the strategy needed to be amended to be more easily understood by the public.
- The Chief Strategy Officer stated that the strategies for adjoining areas were also being drafted but would be open for viewing and consultation in early 2023.
- Members noted that it was good to see a focus on the cost of living crisis (Priority
 and the creation of a task and finish group as fuel poverty, food poverty and transport poverty were big issues in parts of Rutland.
- Members were informed that MacMillan Cancer Support could provide free funding/car parking for cancer patients and it was agreed that transport details should be included on the Council's webpage.
- Members queried if residents could access treatments locally rather than travel to Leicester or Peterborough. It was noted that some treatments i.e. chemotherapy etc. had to be undertaken in the larger hospitals in case of emergencies due to the toxicity of the medication used.
- It was proposed that the example (stated on page 13) of a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy action for Rutland should be replaced with a more detailed and specific action.
- It was noted that the older and younger generation were excluded digital access to services due to a lack of digital knowledge and/or the financial cost involved but that the 'Digital Strategy' would cover all levels i.e. system, place and location.
- Members agreed that the current Integrated Care Strategy was too vague and needed more detail but it was noted that this would be done following comments received as part of the consultation process.
- The Board concluded that the final strategy would need to be easily understood by the public, that the language used in the document would need to be changed to make it more public facing and that an 'easy read' version of the final strategy should be made available.
- The Chief Strategy Officer informed members that the final version of the Integrated Care Strategy would be presented to the Board for formal endorsement

and that a timeline would be given at the next meeting for the details to be added to the Board's Work Plan for 2023/2024.

RESOLVED

That the Board:

a) **AGREED** the initial draft of the Integrated Care System with the amendments proposed by the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board.

5 ANY URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business

6 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday, 24th January 2023 at 2.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham LE15 6HP

The Chair declared the meeting closed at 2.58 pm.